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Introduction

Public Health Works is designed to serve as a resource for 
Boards of Health, County Commissions, and local public health 
agency administrators.  It provides basic information about a 
number of topics related to health agency administration, as 
well as links to more detailed documents and other related 
websites.

The Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services is pleased 
to provide this resource and we hope it is valuable.  If you have 
questions, comments, or suggestions about the content of Public 
Health Works, please contact the Center for Local Public Health 
Services at 912 Wildwood, P.O. Box 570, Jefferson City, MO 
65102-0570, or by phone or e-mail at 573-751-6170, 
eichhh@dhss.mo.gov. 

Acknowledgements:
Thanks to the Center for Local Public Health Services staff who 
made this project possible.
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Public health and its benefits to Missourians are not well understood by 
many.  Some people associate public health with immunizations for 
children and inspection of restaurants.  Others see public health as the 
dedicated “county nurse” visiting older people in their homes.  But few 
realize the broad range of activities and responsibilities for which public 
health is accountable.  

Actually, public health is a sophisticated science for identifying and 
dealing with real and potential health threats to the community.  Public 
health’s primary purposes are to improve the health of communities, 
to prevent disease from occurring, and to save lives. An effective public 
health system:
 	

• assesses and promotes health and safety;	

• prevents or minimizes the occurrence of diseases and injuries;	

• plans, prepares, and responds to natural and manmade disasters;	

• identifies barriers, and facilitates access to primary and preventive 
health care; and	

• enforces public health laws and regulations.
 
Public health relies upon a diverse group of professionals including 
nurses, environmental specialists, health educators, administrators, 
nutritionists, epidemiologists, physicians, and laboratory workers.  
Others, not usually thought of as public health workers, are also essential 
to public health work (for example soil scientists, attorneys, engineers, 
accountants, and computer program designers).  Each of these individuals, 
with their own unique set of knowledge and skills, and the organizations 
that employ them, make up the public health system.  Working as a 
system, public health is able to protect citizens from communicable 
diseases and other threats.  Public health workers use surveillance to 
discover the source of a disease or environmental threat, identify and 
treat those who may have been exposed, and assure that the threat 
is reduced or eliminated. 

What Is Public Health?What Is Public Health?
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Public health is often confused with health care.  A health care provider 
diagnoses and treats each of his/her individual patients.  Public health 
professionals diagnose whole communities and develop a plan of 
action to improve the health status of the entire population.  Public 
health professionals collaborate and bring together those who can 
affect a problem.  

Although the principal role of public health has remained the same, 
its focus has changed over the years.  Early in the 20th century, 
public health efforts were primarily directed to disease prevention.  
Environmental safeguards, such as assuring the safety of drinking 
water and sanitary disposal of sewage, along with the development 
of vaccines and provision of immunizations, greatly reduced disease 
incidence and increased life expectancy.  In the latter part of the 20th 
century many public health agencies took on the responsibility of 
providing care to indigent populations.  Because expanded insurance 
coverage has made personal health services more accessible to most 
people, public health is now able to focus more closely on its principal 
roles of protecting the public and promoting health.

Entering into the 21st century, public health has many challenges 
such as new diseases, infections and bioterrorism threats.  Rapid 
transit can bring novel, previously non-existent threats to our 
communities from a world away in a matter of hours.  Building capacity 
and assuring readiness to confront these challenges is essential.



Missouri’s Local Public Health Agencies 
  

For more detailed information about the service areas of each of these agencies, go to:  
http://www.dhss.mo.gov/LPHA/LPHAs.html. 
  
 
Agency Name 

 
Date Established

2006 Tax 
Levy

 
Governance

Adair Co. Health Dept. April, 1980    $       .20                 Board of Trustees 
Andrew Co. Health Dept. April, 1975 .09 Board of Trustees 
Atchison Co. Health Dept. February, 1964 .05 Board of Trustees 
Audrain City-Co. Health Unit March, 1961 Chapter 70 Board 
Barry Co. Health Dept. July, 1953 .07 Board of Trustees 
Barton Co. Health Dept. June, 1969 .13 Board of Trustees 
Bates Co. Health Ctr. August 3, 1976 .08 Board of Trustees 
Benton Co. Health Dept. August 3, 1976 .40 Board of Trustees 
Bollinger Co. Health Ctr. June, 1959 .24 Board of Trustees 
Butler Co. Health Ctr. March, 1948 .09      Board of Trustees 
Caldwell Co. Health Dept. March, 1977 .25 Board of Trustees 
Callaway Co. Health Dept. 1940 County Commission
Camden Co. Health Dept. August, 1958 County Commission
Cape Girardeau Co. Pub. Hlth Ctr. August, 1986 .10 Board of Trustees 
Carroll Co. Health Dept. February, 1981 .10 Board of Trustees 
Carter Co. Health Ctr. November, 1954 .25 Board of Trustees 
Cass Co. Health Dept. 1938 County Commission
Cedar Co. Health Dept. 1991   County Commission/

Cedar County Hosp.
Chariton Co. Health Ctr. May, 1986 .10 Board of Trustees 
Christian Co. Health Dept. September, 1970 .04                 Board of Trustees 
Clark Co. Health Dept. April, 1980 .10 Board of Trustees 
Clay Co. Public Health Ctr. 1953 .10 Board of Trustees 
Clinton Co. Health Dept. February, 1981 .09 Board of Trustees 
Cole Co. Health Dept. 1916 County Commission
Columbia/Boone Co. Health Dept. 1915   City Council and County 

Commission 
Cooper Co. Public Health Dept. March, 1933                                   .18                 Board of Trustees
Crawford Co. Nursing Service October, 1939 County Commission
Dade Co. Health Dept. April, 1969 .10 Board of Trustees 
Dallas Co. Health Dept. Late 1953 .10 Board of Trustees 
Daviess Co. Health Dept. April, 1976 .24 Board of Trustees 
Dent Co. Health Center January, 1963 .09 Board of Trustees 
Douglas Co. Health Dept. June, 1976 .20 Board of Trustees 
Dunklin Co. Health Dept. May, 1948 .10 Board of Trustees 
Franklin Co. Dept. of Health 1987 County Commission
Gasconade/Osage Co. Health Dept.  Gas.-April, 1976

Osage-Sept. 1965
.10 

(Gasconade only) 
Board of Trustees and
County Commission

Grundy Co. Health Dept. April, 1977 .30 Board of Trustees 
Harrison Co. Health Dept. March, 1977 .14 Board of Trustees 
Henry Co. Health Ctr. November 2, 1976 .10 Board of Trustees 
Hickory Co. Health Dept. May, 1969 .16   Board of Trustees 
Holt Co. Health Dept.  1993 County Commission
Howard Co. Pub. Health Dept. 1935 County Commission
Howell County Health Dept. 
  (Replaces South Central Pub. 
   Health Services Group, Inc.) 

2003 
(1995) 

.10 Board of Trustees 

Independence City Health Dept. 1963 City Council 
Iron Co. Health Dept. January, 1959 .10 Board of Trustees 
Jackson Co. Health Dept. 1925 .16 County Council/ 

Truman Hospital 
Jasper Co. Health Dept. 1940 County Commission
Jefferson Co. Health Dept. July, 1949 .08 Board of Trustees 

http://www.dhss.mo.gov/LPHA/LPHAs.html


Johnson Co. Community Hlth Ser. November 2, 1976 .10 Board of Trustees 
Joplin City Health Dept. 1903 .05 City Council 
Kansas City Health Dept. 1866 .69 City Council 
Knox Co. Health Dept. November 2, 1976 .10 Board of Trustees 
Laclede Co. Health Dept. 1948 .10 Board of Trustees 
Lafayette Co. Health Dept. 1985 .08 Board of Trustees 
Lawrence Co. Health Dept. 1938 County Commission
Lewis Co. Health Dept. July, 1953 .10 Board of Trustees 
Lincoln Co. Health Dept. August, 1966 .20 Board of Trustees 
Linn Co. Health Dept. March, 1977 .20 Board of Trustees 
Livingston Co. Health Ctr. August 3, 1976 .25 Board of Trustees 
McDonald Co. Health Dept. 1934 or 1935 County Commission
Macon Co. Health Dept. June, 1949 .15 Board of Trustees 
Madison Co. Health Dept. July, 1949 .09 Board of Trustees 
Marion Co. Health Dept.                          1926                                               15                 Board of Trustees 
Mercer Co. Health Dept. August 3, 1976 .30 Board of Trustees 
Miller Co. Health Ctr. January, 1925 .15 Board of Trustees 
Mississippi Co. Health Dept. April, 1949 .10 Board of Trustees 
Moniteau Co. Health Ctr. April, 1986 .15 Board of Trustees 
Monroe Co. Health Dept. March, 1976 .10 Board of Trustees 
Montgomery Co. Health Dept. 1987 .13 Board of Trustees 
Morgan Co. Health Ctr. February, 1962 .07 Board of Trustees 
New Madrid Co. Health Dept. November, 1950 .09 Board of Trustees 
Newton Co. Health Dept. August, 1948 .05 Board of Trustees 
Nodaway Co. Health Ctr. August, 1974 .05 Board of Trustees 
Oregon Co. Health Dept. November, 1965 .10 Board of Trustees 
Ozark Co. Health Ctr. June, 1962 .10 Board of Trustees 
Pemiscot Co. Health Ctr. April, 1949 .10 Board of Trustees 
Perry Co. Health Dept. April, 1976 .18 Board of Trustees 
Pettis Co. Health Ctr. August, 1986 .09 Board of Trustees 
Phelps/Maries Co. Health Dept. Phelps 1941-42

Maries 1991
  County Commission

Pike Co. Health Dept. July, 1940 .16 Board of Trustees 
Platte Co. Health Dept. 1952 .08 Board of Trustees 
Polk Co. Health Ctr. March, 1969 .09 Board of Trustees 
Pulaski Co. Health Dept. March, 1951 .07 Board of Trustees 
Putnam Co. Health Dept. August 3, 1976 .29 Board of Trustees 
Ralls Co. Health Dept. September, 1957 .10 Board of Trustees 
Randolph Co. Health Dept. June, 1980 .15 Board of Trustees 
Ray Co. Health Dept. December 18, 1976 .09 Board of Trustees 
Reynolds Co. Health Ctr. September, 1952 .10 Board of Trustees 
Ripley Co. Public Health Ctr. August, 1954 .15 Board of Trustees 
St. Charles Co. Dept. of Comm. 
      Health and the Environment 

1958   County Council 

St. Clair Co. Health Ctr. September, 1977 .21 Board of Trustees 
St. Francois Co. Health Ctr. April, 1976 .09 Board of Trustees 
St. Joseph-Buchanan Co. Hlth Dept. Buch/Before 1937 

St. Joe 1985
.21 

(City of St. Joe)
City Council and County 
Commission 

St. Louis City Dept. of Hlth & Hosp. 1967 .02 City Council 
St. Louis Co. Dept. of Health 1937 .17 County Council 
Ste. Genevieve Co. Health Dept. August 3, 1976 .10 Board of Trustees 
Saline Co. Health Office 1955                                         .14               Board of Trustees
Schuyler Co. Health Dept. April, 1979 .25                 Board of Trustees 
Scotland Co. Health Dept. April, 1980 .15 Board of Trustees 
Scott Co. Health Dept. November, 1949 .10 Board of Trustees 
Shannon Co. Health Dept. April, 1961 .10 Board of Trustees 
Shelby Co. Health Dept. April, 1978 .25 Board of Trustees 
Springfield-Greene Co. Public 
   Health Ctr. 

1873 .13  
(City of Spfld.)

City Council and County 
Commission 

Stoddard Co. Pub. Health Ctr. April, 1989 .10 Board of Trustees 
Stone Co. Health Ctr. April, 1978 .08 Board of Trustees 
Sullivan Co. Health Dept. March, 1977 .25 Board of Trustees 
Taney Co. Health Dept. September, 1960 .14 Board of Trustees 
Texas Co. Health Dept. January, 1987 .10 Board of Trustees 
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Tri-Co. Health Dept.  
    (DeKalb/Gentry/Worth) 

1985   Chapter 70 Board  

Vernon Co. Health Dept. May, 1974 .10 Board of Trustees 
Warren Co. Health Dept. 1993 County Commission
Washington Co. Health Dept. December, 1948 .15 Board of Trustees 
Wayne Co. Health Ctr. January, 1948 .10 Board of Trustees 
Webster Co. Health Unit September, 1957 .14 Board of Trustees 
Wright Co. Health Dept. November, 1949 .08 Board of Trustees 



Missouri Voluntary Accreditation 
Program for Local Public Health 
Agencies
Accreditation is a credential given to an agency or institution that 
meets a defined set of standards.  Society requires increased 
accountability and collaboration from public and private sector 
organizations in today’s world of limited resources.  For institutions 
such as hospitals, schools, home health agencies, universities, etc., 
accreditation standards are well established.  Voluntary accreditation 
for public health agencies can assist in establishing credibility among 
public and private partners and provide accountability to the public.  
Standards will establish recognizable quality markers, and validate 
and support the use of public and private funding for the public 
health system.  For more information about voluntary accreditation 
in Missouri, see http://www.michweb.org/accprocess.htm.

Missouri Voluntary Accreditation 
Program for Local Public Health 
Agencies

Return to Table of Contents
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The types of local public health agencies in Missouri include:
     

• Board of Trustees operated agencies    	

• County commission created agencies     	

• Agencies created by city charter   	

• Contractually created agencies

The majority of local public health agencies in Missouri operate 
under Boards of Trustees.  They are:	

• Created by petition and vote of the people:  Chapter 205 RSMo 
is the operating authority.  It allows a county, by a simple majority 
vote of the citizens, to assess up to 40 cents per $100 valuation 
for the establishment, maintenance, management and operation 
of a county health center and the maintenance of the personnel 
required for operation of the health center.   	

• Board of Trustees is elected:

1.	County Commission appoints the first board, to serve until 
the election.

2.	 If a vacancy occurs between elections, the Commission appoints 
an individual to fill the vacancy.

3.	At the February Commissioners’ meeting, the administrator 
is appointed the health officer for the county.

Governing Bodies for Local 
Public Health Agencies:
Governing Bodies for Local 
Public Health Agencies:



•	Chapter 205 identifies Board duties and powers: 
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C200-299/2050000042.HTM 

1.  Trustees are required to take the oath of civil officers and to 
elect a board chairman, secretary and treasurer.

2.  Trustees shall not be compensated for their services.

3.  The trustees shall make and adopt bylaws, rules and regulations 
for their own guidance and for the governing of the health 
center as may be deemed expedient for its economic and 
equitable conduct.

4.  The trustees shall have exclusive control of the expenditures 
of all moneys collected to the credit of the county health center 
and for the purchase, construction, supervision, care and custody 
of the health center building.

5.  All funds received for the health center shall be used solely for 
the center in accordance with the provisions of sections 205.010 
to 205.150 RSMo.

6.  The Board shall appoint and remove personnel as needed and 
determine their compensation.

7.  The Board shall meet at least once a month and keep a record 
of its proceedings.	

8.  One board member shall visit and examine the health center 
at least twice each month.

9.  The Board is to set the rate of the tax levy annually.

10.	The Board may enter into contracts for the furtherance of health 
activities.		

• The health center’s purpose is the improvement of health of all 			
   inhabitants of the county or counties.

County commission created local public health agencies:
http://www.moga.mo.us/statutes/C100-199/1920000280.HTM 

http://www.moga.state.mo.us/statutes/C200-299/2050000042.HTM
http://www.moga.state.mo.us/statutes/C100-199/1920000280.HTM


•	May have a physician appointed as health officer.     	

•	Health officer may have deputies or assistants in counties of class 
one, except counties of the first class not having a charter form of 
government, and in any county of the second class in which the 
circuit court sits in more than one city and which has a population 
of at least fifty-eight thousand but not more than sixty-five thousand.    
 

•	The duty of the county health officer is to enforce the rules and 
regulations of the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services 
outside of incorporated cities that maintain a health officer.     	

•	May be created as a health unit without a health officer.
 
City charter created local public health agencies:   	

•	The city charter provides the specific authority to operate an agency.	

•	The usual purpose of the agency is to protect the health of the 
inhabitants or stop the spread of communicable diseases.

 
Contractually created agencies:
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C000-099/0700000010.HTM	

•	Chapter 70 RSMo provides that two or more contiguous counties 
may join in performing any common function or service.     	

•	The contract may provide for common employees.     	

•	The county commissions participating in the contract shall administer 
the delegated powers and allocate the cost among the counties.

All agencies, regardless of how created, are required to follow the 
provisions of the Open Records/Meetings law (Sunshine Law) in 
Chapter 610 RSMo.  The Attorney General’s office has a brochure 
that can be requested by calling 573-751-3321 or request a video 
produced by the Attorney General’s Office from the Center for 
Local Public Health Services.  Consult a local attorney for any 
needed legal opinion. http://ago.mo.gov/sunshinelaw/sunshinelaw.htm
 
This is not an inclusive description of local public health agencies and 
how they operate in Missouri.  For a complete description, consult the 
appropriate statute(s) and for a legal interpretation, consult a local 
attorney.
 
Return to Table of Contents 

http://www.moga.state.mo.us/statutes/C000-099/0700000010.HTM
http://www.ago.mo.gov/sunshinelaw/sunshinelaw.htm
http://ago.mo.gov/sunshinelaw/sunshinelaw.htm






















Agencies need to evaluate their services and programs provided to 
their service area.  Some places to go for evaluation strategies and 
agency self-assessment include:

 	
• 	 The Guide to Community Preventive Services is a resource 

for evaluating various population-based strategies to improve 
health.  It can be located at 					
http://www.thecommunityguide.org

     	

• 	 National Public Health Performance Standards Program		
http://www.cdc.gov/od/ocphp/nphpsp/

     	
•	 Missouri Institute for Community Health.  Voluntary 

Accreditation for Local Public Health Agencies at 		
http://www.michweb.org
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How to Help the Community Understand and Support 
Public Health

The local public health agency is an important part of the community 
health system.  As such, it needs to interact with the policymakers 
and public on a regular basis.  Most people do not understand what 
public health does for them.  Vivid and easily understood terms and 
concrete examples can be effective in getting your message across.

Local public health agencies should take opportunities to participate 
in media broadcasts, articles, speaking engagements, etc., and 
use the Public Health Logo to promote the local public health 
system.  The National Association of County and City Health Officials 
(NACCHO) Advocacy and Marketing web site provides valuable tools
and resources, as well as usable logos.
http://www.naccho.org/advocacy/marketing/LocalPublicHealthBrand.cfm 
 
Go to the Turning Point Initiative site, funded by Robert Wood Johnson, 
for available resources.
  http://www.turningpointprogram.org/.

Public RelationsPublic Relations
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Composition of the legislative branch of government.
Legislative power in Missouri is vested in the General Assembly by 
Article III, Section 1, of the Missouri Constitution. The General Assembly, 
more commonly known as the legislature, includes the Senate and 
the House of Representatives.

The Senate has 34 members, who are elected for four-year terms.  
Senators from odd-numbered districts are elected in presidential 
election years.  Those from even-numbered districts are chosen in 
the “off year” elections.  The Lieutenant Governor is President of the 
Senate.  In his/her absence, the President Pro tem, elected by the 
Senate members, presides.

The House of Representatives consists of 163 members, elected at 
each general election for two-year terms.  The House of Representatives 
is presided over by the Speaker, who is chosen by the members, and 
in his/her absence by the Speaker Pro Tem.

New senatorial and representative districts are established after each 
federal decennial census, according to the Missouri Constitution.

Senators and representatives receive an annual salary, a weekly 
mileage allowance and per diem expenses.  Salaries may be increased 
by appropriations.

Regular time of meeting.
The General Assembly convenes at the State Capitol in Jefferson City 
on the first Wednesday after the first Monday of January.  The deadline 
for considering appropriation bills is 6:00 p.m. on the first Friday 
following the first Monday in May.  For other bills the deadline is the 
first Friday following the second Monday in May.  Adjournment is May 
30.

Veto sessions.
If the Governor returns a bill with his objections after the legislature 
adjourns, they are automatically reconvened to reconsider vetoed 
bills on the first Wednesday following the second Monday in September 
for a maximum of ten days.

The Legislative Process In MissouriThe Legislative Process In Missouri



Special sessions.
The Governor may convene the General Assembly in special session for 
a maximum of 60 calendar days.  Only subjects recommended by the 
Governor may be considered during a special session.  The President Pro 
Tem and the Speaker may convene a 30-day special session upon petition 
of 3⁄4 of the members of each chamber.

Organization of the General Assembly.
Following the general election in November of even-numbered years, 
each party holds a separate caucus to nominate candidates for offices 
and to organize for the upcoming session.  Each party names its floor 
leader, assistant floor leader, whip, caucus chairman and caucus secretary.  
New members are sworn in on the opening day of the session, and officers 
are elected.  Both houses then convene to receive the Governor’s “State 
of the State” message with his/her legislative and budgetary 
recommendations.
Each house determines its own rules and procedures and keeps a daily 
journal of its proceedings. The journals are printed daily.
 
How Bills Become Laws
Bills may be introduced in the House or Senate, although appropriations 
bills customarily originate in the House.  Each bill contains only 
one subject, expressed clearly in its title.  A bill may not be amended if 
the amendment changes the original purpose of the bill. (See cartoon)  

Similar processes occur in the House and the Senate.  The sequence 
below describes the path a bill follows when introduced in the House.

1.  Introduction.  Bills may be filed any time from December 1 until 
the 60th day of the legislative session.  A bill may be filed later than 
the 60th day by consent of a majority of members of both houses, 
or if the Governor requests it in a special message.

2.  First and Second Readings.  When a bill is introduced, it is assigned 
a number and read the first time (by number and title only) by the 
House Reading Clerk.  It then goes on the calendar for second 
reading.  Following second reading, it is assigned to committee by 
the Speaker of the House.

3.  Public Hearing.  The next step is a public hearing before the assigned 
committee.  The bill is presented to the committee by its sponsor, 
and proponents and opponents are given the opportunity to 
provide testimony.  If the bill is very complex or controversial, 
multiple hearings may be held.

http://www.house.mo.gov/info/habbl.pdf


4.  Committee Executive Session.  After a hearing, the committee 
may meet to vote on the fate of the bill.  These “executive 
sessions” are open to the public, but no public testimony is heard.  
The committee may vote to:

     
• Report the bill to the full House with the recommendation 

of “do pass.”
• Report an amended version of the bill to the full House with a

recommendation of "do pass." If the changes are particularly
       significant or numerous, then the version of the bill reported

              is known as a committee substitute.  
        •Report the bill without recommendations.
        •Defeat the bill.

 
           The state constitution allows a bill to be taken from committee by vote 
          of 1/3 of the members of the House.  It is then placed on the House 
          calendar for consideration.

 
 
5.   Perfection of a bill.  If a bill is reported out of committee, 
     it is placed on the “perfection calendar.”  When its turn comes 
     up, it is debated on the House floor.  Additional amendments 
     or substitutes may then be proposed by House members.  When 
     action on all proposed revisions has been completed, a motion 
     is made to have the bill “perfected.”  If a majority votes yes, 
     the bill is republished in its amended form and labeled Perfected.

 
6.  Third reading and final passage.  The perfected bill goes on the 

calendar for third reading and final passage.  The bill may be 
debated on the floor, but only technical corrective amendments 
are allowed.  After debate, a recorded vote is taken, and the bill 
is passed if approved by a majority.  If passed, the bill then goes 
to the Senate, where a similar process is followed.

 
7.  Conference committee.  If the Senate changes the house bill in 

any way, it goes back to the House with a request that the changes 
be approved.  If they approve, the bill is Truly Agreed to and Finally 
Passed and sent to the Governor for consideration.  However, if 
any of the Senate changes are rejected, the bill may be sent to a 

 



     conference committee of five members from each house.  If the 
committee comes to an agreement, the House and Senate both 
receive a report of the committee’s recommendations.  If both 
approve the conference committee report, the bill is declared Truly 
Agreed to and Finally Passed.  If either the House or the Senate 
rejects the committee report, it may be returned to the same or 
a newly appointed conference committee for further discussion.

 
 
8. Consent bills.  There are procedures in both chambers to expedite 
    bills that are considered non-controversial.  In the House, any 
    committee may, by unanimous consent, report a bill Do Pass by 
    Consent as long as it doesn’t have any impact on state revenues.  
    The bill goes onto the Consent Bills for Perfection Calendar for 
    5 days.  Unless 5 members object to it during that time, it is 
    considered perfected and placed on the Consent Bills for 
    Third Reading Calendar.  Such bills cannot be amended on third
    reading, but they may be amended by the Senate. 
 
 
 
     

 
 
 
 
9.   Signing by the Governor.  Bills that are Truly Agreed to and 

Finally Passed are signed in open session by the Speaker of the 
     House and the President Pro Tem of the Senate.  At that time,
     any members may file objections, which are sent with the bill
     to the Governor.  The Governor has 15 days to act on a bill
     if it is sent to him/her during the legislative session, and 45
     days if the legislature has adjourned.  The Governor has four   
     options: 

• Sign the bill, so it becomes Missouri law.

• Veto the bill.  In this case, the bill is returned to the General 
 Assembly.  A 2/3 majority vote of both the House and Senate

   is required to override the veto.

 •  Not sign the bill.  In this case, when the time limit is up, the bill 
  goes to the Secretary of State and becomes law.

 •  Veto line items.  The Governor may veto selected items within 
  appropriations bills only.  The General Assembly may override 
  any such veto by a 2/3 majority vote of both the House and 

    Senate.
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10. Effective date of laws.  Most laws take effect 90 days after 
the session ends (August 28 for regular sessions).  Bills may
also be passed with a specific effective date or an emergency
clause.  When a bill is passed with an emergency clause, it 
takes effect as soon as the Governor signs it.  

For information about the current legislative session go to: 
http://www.moga.mo.gov/.

http://www.moga.state.mo.us/


More information about the legislature.
A wealth of information about the legislature is available on the Missouri Home Page at 
http://www.moga.mo.gov/

Available facts include:
Legislators’ names, addresses, and other contact information
Legislative calendars
Status of each bill’s progress through the legislature

Legislative activities:
Local public health agencies and governing bodies can have a strong voice in educating legislators about 
issues and solutions.  As unpaid elected officials, board members represent their constituents.

It is strongly recommended that boards of trustees develop a policy regarding involvement in legislative 
activity by the board and agency staff.

It is very important to get to know the House and Senate members who represent your jurisdiction.  There 
is no substitute for an ongoing relationship with your policymakers.  When legislators need information, 
they turn to constituents whom they know and trust.  Ask yourself not, “Do I know my legislator?” but, 
“Does my legislator know me?”

Statewide advocacy organizations can provide a collective voice and a presence in Jefferson City.  For 
example, the Missouri Association of Local Public Health Agencies (MoALPHA) has a legislative committee 
and takes positions on issues that come before the legislature.

Remember that legislators are extremely busy, especially during the legislative session.  Communication 
must be very clear, concise, and to the point.

Silence on an issue is usually interpreted as apathy or agreement.  If a legislator does not hear from those 
in support of a bill or appropriation action, he/she may think that it isn’t worth pursuing because no one 
cares.  If he/she proposes a change and hears no opposition to it, agreement may be assumed.  So 
communication is very important.

See the Turning Point/Robert Wood Johnson site for more information on communicating with your 
legislators:

Communicating With 
Legislators
Communicating With 
Legislators

http://www.turningpointprogram.org/
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The Missouri state fiscal year runs from July 1 through June 30.  
Preparation of the state budget begins at least one year in 
advance.  The steps in the process are:

1.    The Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services (MDHSS) 
prepares a budget request.  In most years, this includes both 
‘core’ funding, to continue existing programs and services, and 
‘new decision items’ to fund new activities.  Detailed information 
is included showing what has been accomplished with previous 
funding and what is to be accomplished with new funding.

2.    The MDHSS budget request is submitted to the Office of 
Administration (OA) by October 1 as required by law.  It is 
reviewed by OA staff and the Governor’s Office, along with 
the requests submitted by the other state departments.

3.    OA and the Governor’s Office develop the Governor’s 
        recommended budget for the next fiscal year.  This is 
       submitted to the legislature on the day of the Governor’s 
       State of the State address in January.  This is the official 
       appropriation request of the Executive Branch and is 
        supported by all executive departments including MDHSS.

4.    Though not required by law, appropriation bills customarily
originate in the House of Representatives. MDHSS’ budget is 
in House Bill 10, along with the Department of Mental Health.  
Appropriation bills are referred to the House Budget Committee, 
which in turn relies on several subcommittees known as House

        Appropriation Committees.  The House Appropriation
        Committees conduct hearings and listen to public testimony. 
       MDHSS staff are called upon to provide detailed testimony 
       about the department budget request and to answer 
       questions.

5.    After concluding hearings, the House Appropriations 
Committee members discuss changes to the proposed budget.

       Based on that input, the Appropriations Committee chair
              addresses a letter to the House Budget Committee chair
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     outlining items favored for additional funding as well as 
     items for which the Appropriations Committee does not  
     recommend funding.  This is done in a public hearing.

6.    The bill then goes to the House Budget Committee, where
       the Appropriations Committee chair presents it.  After
       discussion by committee members, the bill is 'marked
       up' by the Committee, voted "do pass," and sent to the
       full House. 
7.    The House debates the appropriation bill and sends its 

approved version to the Senate.
  
 
 
 8.   The Senate Budget Committee holds public hearings with 

testimony on House Bill 10. The committee then “marks 
up” the bill in public hearing and sends it to the Senate 
floor for debate and passage.

  
 
 
 9.   Unless the House and Senate bills are identical, they are 

sent to a conference committee for discussion.  When the 
conference committee agrees upon a version, it goes back 
to both chambers for debate and passage.  This process 
may need to be repeated.  When both chambers pass an 
identical version of a bill, the bill goes to the Governor for 

        for consideration. 
 

10.   The Governor may sign House Bill 10, veto it, or exercise 
 a line item veto to remove certain items while approving

        the overall bill.  If the whole bill is vetoed, the legislature
m                    must be called into special session to pass a new version

                              of the bill for the Governor's consideration.
                             

                                     11.   Provided the Governor has approved the bill, it goes into
                                                    effect at the beginning fo the state's fiscal year on July 1. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Government Agencies/Elected Officials

Centers for Disease Control & Prevention (CDC)  http://www.cdc.gov/

Missouri Attorney General  http://www.ago.mo.gov/index.htm 

Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services (DHSS)  
http://www.dhss.mo.gov/

Missouri Ethics Commission  
http://www.moethics.mo.gov/Ethics/Generalinfo/Generalinfo.aspx

Missouri General Assembly  http://www.moga.mo.gov/

Missouri Public Entity Risk Management (MOPERM)  
http://www.moperm.com/

Missouri Secretary of State  http://www.sos.mo.gov/

Missouri Secretary of State’s Office - Missouri Hospital and Health District 
Records Manual
http://www.sos.mo.gov/archives/localrecs/schedules/hospital.asp

Missouri State Board of Professional Registration  
http://pr.mo.gov

Missouri State Government Home Page  http://www.mo.gov/

Public Health Organizations
National Association of Local Boards of Health (NALBOH)  
http://www.nalboh.org/

National Association of City County Health Officers (NACCHO)  
http://www.naccho.org/

American Public Health Association (APHA)  http://www.apha.org/

Association of State & Territorial Health Officers (ASTHO)  
http://www.astho.org/

ResourcesResources



Missouri Association of Local Public Health Agencies (MoALPHA)
http://www.moalpha.org/

Missouri Environmental Health Association 
http://www.mmfeha.org/ 

Missouri Institute of Community Health (MICH)
http://www.michweb.org/

Missouri Public Health Association (MPHA  http://www.mopha.org/

National Commission for Health Education  www.nchec.org

National Environmental Health Association  http://www.neha.org/

Turning Point Initiative  
http://www.turningpointprogram.org/

Evaluation Tools
Guide to Community Preventive Services  
http://www.thecommunityguide.org

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)

Missouri Voluntary Local Public Health Agency Accreditation Program  
http://www.michweb.org/accprocess.htm

Mid-America Intergovernmental Audit Forum
http://www.auditforum.org 

National Public Health Performance Standards Program  
http://www.cdc.gov/od/ocphp/nphpsp

Laws and Rules
Chapter 70, RSMo (Contractually created agencies)  
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C070.HTM

Chapter 105, RSMo (Identifies Personal Financial Disclosure 
requirements)
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000483.HTM 
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000485.HTM
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000487.HTM
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Chapter 192, RSMo (County Commission created local public health 
agencies)
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/c100-199/1920000280.htm 

Chapter 205, RSMo (Identifies Board duties and powers)
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/c200-299/2050000042.htm

Section 192.300 RSMo (Provides for Boards of Trustees and County 
Commissions to enact local ordinances for their jurisdiction)
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1920000300.HTM

Fair Labor Standards Act  http://www.opm.gov/flsa/ 

Family Medical Leave Act  http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/fmla/

Legal Expense Fund
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000711.HTM
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000712.HTM
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000716.HTM
http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C100-199/1050000726.HTM

Missouri Open Meetings and Records Law (Sunshine)
http://www.ago.mo.gov/sunshinelaw/sunshinelaw.htm  

Insurance
Missouri Consolidated Health Care Plan  http://www.mchcp.org

Missouri Public Entity Risk Management
http://www.moperm.com

Licensing and Certification
Missouri Division of Professional Registration
http://www.pr.mo.gov/ 

Public Health Practitioner Certification Board  http://phpcb.org

Other
Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services Public Health Nursing Manual  
http://www.dhss.mo.gov/LPHA/PHNursing/Index.html
 
Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services Resources (Local 
Public Health Agencies Infrastructure Report, Financial Review, Contract 
Information and numerous other Publications)  
http://www.dhss.mo.gov/LPHA/index.html
on
Missouri Local Public Health Agencies by Governance Map
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